AGENDA
MACON COUNTY BOARD MEETING
August 12, 2021, 6:00 P.M.
141 SOUTH MAIN, ROOM 514
DECATUR, ILLINOIS

Caucus meetings will begin at 5:30 p.m. — NOTE that caucus meetings will not be broadcast via
phone, web or other method. Only board members who are physically present at the caucus
meetings will be permitted to participate. Caucus meetings are open to members of the public who
wish to attend in person.

Republican Caucus will be held on the 4th floor of the County Building (room 414).

Democratic Caucus will be held on the 8th floor of the County Building (room 804)

Caucuses are open meetings and public comment is allowed. Please note that public comment at
caucus meetings may be limited such that all Board members may arrive at the County Board meeting
on time at 6:00 p.m.

Caucus Agendas: Any and all items appearing on the agenda for the County Board
meeting may be discussed. Final action occurs only at the County Board meeting.

NOTICE TO THOSE ATTENDING IN PERSON

Facemasks are not required to be worn by people who are fully vaccinaned
(e ab lenst 2 weeks have elapsed sinee yaccination),

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. OPENING PRAYER

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETING
6. RECOGNITIONS

7. ZONING/SUBDIVISIONS
Z-1236-08-21 Macon County Board Resolution Regarding Case R-01-07-21, A Petition for Rezoning
Submitted by Phillip Pugsley
8. CORRESPONDENCE

9. CLAIMS



10.

11,

12,

13.
14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.
21.

APPOINTMENTS
G-5295-08-21

G-5296-08-21

G-5297-08-21

G-5298-08-21

CONSENT CALENDAR
G-5299-08-21

JUSTICE COMMITTEE
G-5300-08-21

G-5301-08-21

EEHW COMMITTEE

Macon County Board Resolution Appointments /Reappointments of Drainage
District Commissioners

Macon County Board Resolution Reappointment of Rabies Control
Administrator — Larry D. Baker, D.V.M.

Macon County Board Resolution Appointments to Macon County Regional
Planning Commission — Jerry Culp & Clay Gerhard

Macon County Board Resolution Appointments to Macorn County Board of
Health - Jeff Entler & Cody Parks

Macon County Board Resolution. to Execute Deed to Convey Property in which
Taxes were Delinquent

Macon County Board Resolution Approving an Agreement with Macon County
Mental Health Board for Inmate Mental Health Services at the Macon County
Jail for the Term of July 1, 2021 through June 30,2022

Macon County Board Resolution Setting the Salaries for Offices of State’s
Attorney and Public Defender Effective July 1, 2021

OPERATIONS AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE
FINANCE COMMITTEE
G-5302-08-21 Macon County Board Resolution Authorizing Plan for Use of Funds Received
Jrom the American Rescue Plan Act
G-5303-08-21 Macon County Board Resolution to Establish the Position of County
Administrator
G-5304-08-21 Macon County Board Resolution Authorizing Plan for Premium Pay for

Essential Workers under the American Rescue Plan Act

NEGOTIATIONS COMMITTEE

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

SITING, RULES & ORDINANCE SUB-COMMITTEE

BUILDING SUB-COMMITTEE



22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

CITIZENS’ REMARKS

(Limited to S minutes per person and for a total of 20 minutes)
An opportunity for public comment will be provided to all those persons who are physically present and wish
to do so, subject to the time restrictions set forth above.

OFFICEHOLDERS’ REMARKS
OLD BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

CLOSED SESSION

ADJOURNMENT



MACON COUNTY BOARD RESOLUTION
REGARDING CASE R-01-07-21, A PETITION FOR REZONING
SUBMITTED BY PHILLIP PUGSLEY

RESOLUTION NO. Z-1236-08-21

WHEREAS, a petition filed by Phillip Pugsley for rezoning approximately 6.25 acres from
(RE-5) Single Family Estate Zoning to (M-1) Light Industrial District Zoning. This property is
legally described as:

All that part of the Southwest % of the Southeast % of Section Eight (8), Township Sixteen (16)
North, Range Two (2} East of the 3® P.M., lying North of the Wabash Railroad Right of Way;
also the right of way over a strip of land 20 feet in width off of the South side of the part of the
East ¥ of the Southeast % of the Southwest % of said Section 8, lying immediately North of the
Wabash Railroad right of way to be used for a roadway. (Except coal and other mineral
underlying the surface of said land and all rights and easements in favor of the Estate of said
coal and other minerals. Situated in Macon County, Illinois.

The property is commonly known as: 802 N Moffett Lane, Decatur, IL 62526
Decatur Township PIN: 04-12-08-451-001

WHEREAS, at the required public hearing on July 7, 2021, your Zoning Board of Appeals
heard the testimony presented and voted to recommend approval to the County Board, the
petition be granted.

WHEREAS, on July 22, 2021 your EEHW Committee heard the summary report and voted
Approval of the petition to the County Board.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Macon County Board to approve the
subject petition for rezoning approximately 6.25 acres from (RE-5) Single Family Estate
Zoning to (M-1) Light Industrial District Zoning,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall become effective immediately upon
the adoption thereof.

PRESENTED, PASSED, APPROVED this 12th day of August, 2021.
AYES NAYS MACON COUNTY BOARD
MACON COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ATTEST: BY:

Josh Tanner, Clerk for the Kevin Greenfield, Chairman
County of Macon, State of Illinois Macon County Board



MACON COUNTY BOARD RESOLUTION
APPOINTMENTS/REAPPOINTMENTS OF
DRAINAGE DISTRICT COMMISSIONERS

RESOLUTION NO. G-5295-08-21
WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority granted in 70 ILCS 605/4-7 and 70 ILCS 605/3-9 (1998),

the Chairman of the Macon County Board recommends the reappointment/appointment of the
following individuals as Commissioners for the Drainage Districts listed for terms of three years

set to expire the 1st Tuesday in September, 2024:

DISTRICT

Austin Drainage District
No. 1
Macon County, Illinois

Friends Creek Drainage District
No. 1
Macon County, Illinois

Friends Creek-Whitmore Union Drainage
District No. 2
Macon County, Illinois

Macon-Piatt Union Drainage District
No. 5
Macon County, Illinois

Maple Grove Drainage District
Macon County, Illinois

Maroa Drainage District
No. 2
Macon County, Illinois

Maroa Drainage District
No. 3
Macon County, Illinois

Maroa Drainage District
No. 4
Macon County, [llinois

Maroa Drainage District
No. 5
Macon County, [llinois

COMMISSIONER’S
NAME & ADDRESS
Carmen Morthland

Decatur, Illinois 62526

Barbara Carroll
Monticello, Illinois 61856

R. Michael Ferrill
Oreana, Illinois 62554

Lucia Wilkin
Monticello, Illinois, 61856

Barry Parish

Decatur, Illinois, 62526
David Zelhart

Maroa, Illinois 61756

Thomas Fogerson, Jr.
Decatur, linois 62526

Gene Hoffman
Clinton, Illinois 61727

Gay Shoemaker
Maroa, Illinois 61756

TERM EXPIRES
1# Tuesday
September, 2024

1% Tuesday
September, 2024

1% Tuesday
September, 2024

1% Tuesday
September, 2024

1% Tuesday
September, 2024

1% Tuesday
September, 2024

1% Tuesday
September, 2024

1* Tuesday
September, 2024

1 Tuesday
September, 2024



Maroa-Friends Creek Union Drainage
District No. 8
Macon County, Illinois

Maroa-Friends Creek Union Drainage
District No. 9
Macon County, Illinois

Maroa-Friends Creek Union Drainage
District No. 10
Macon County, Illinois

Milam Drainage District No. 1
Macon County, Iilinois

Niantic Drainage District No. 1
Macon County, Illinois

Niantic Drainage District
No. 2
Macon County, Illinois

Oakley Township Drainage District
No. 1
Macon County, Illinois

Pleasant View Drainage District
No. 2
Macon County, Illinois

Pleasant View/Prairieton Townships
Union Drainage District No. 1
Macon County, Hlinois

Pleasant View/Prairieton Townships
Union Drainage District No. 2
Macon County, Hlinois

Sanner Chapel Mutual Drainage District

Macon County, lllinois

South Macon/Milam Union Drainage Dist.

No. 1
Macon County, Illinois

South Macon/South Wheatland Union
Drainage District No. 1
Macon County, Illinois

Edward “Dale” Wade
Maroa, Illinois 61756

Jeffrey Jackson
Argenta, Illinois 62501

Thomas Ferrill
Maroa, IL 61756

John Freeland
Dalton City, IL 61925

Mark Blair
Illiopolis, Mlinois 62539

Robert J. Moore
Niantic, Illinois 62551

Greg Morganthaler
Oakley, Illinois 62501

Kevin Bafford
Blue Mound, Illinois 62513

Neil Damery
Blue Mound, Illinois 62513

Gary Ashburn
Blue Mound, Illincis 62513

David Wilson
Macon, Illinois 62544

Roger A. Metzger
Macon, Illinois 62544

Terry Hogan
Macon, Illincis 62544

1% Tuesday
September, 2024

15 Tuesday
September, 2024

1% Tuesday
September, 2024

15 Tuesday
September, 2024

1% Tuesday
September, 2024

1% Tuesday
September, 2024

1% Tuesday
September, 2024

1% Tuesday
September, 2024

15 Tuesday
September, 2024

1* Tuesday
September, 2024

1% Tuesday
September, 2024

1% Tuesday
September, 2024

1% Tuesday
September, 2024



Whitmore Drainage District Brian Volle 1% Tuesday
No. 1 Oreana, Illinois 62554 September, 2024

Macon County, Illinois

Whitmore Drainage District Steven Wentworth 1* Tuesday
No. 4 Maroa, Illinois 61756 September, 2024

Macon County, Illinois

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Macon County Board that it hereby
approves the appointments/reappointments of the above named Commissioners for the Drainage
Districts listed and their set term of office.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall become effective upon the adoption
thereof.

PRESENTED, PASSED, APPROVED this 12th day of August, 2021

AYES NAYS MACON COUNTY BOARD
MACON COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ATTEST: BY:

Josh Tanner, Clerk for the Kevin R. Greenfield, Chairman

County of Macon, State of Illinois Macon County Board



MACON COUNTY BOARD RESOLUTION
RE-APPOINTMENT OF RABIES CONTROL
ADMINISTRATOR - Larry D. Baker, D.V.M.
RESOLUTION NO. G-5296-08-21
WHEREAS, the County of Macon is required by law to have the services of a Rabies Control
Administrator; and
WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Board Chairman to re-appoint the following
individual for a term of one year:

Larry D. Baker, D.V.M.

2800 North Martin Luther King Jr. Drive
Decatur, Illinois 62526
Term Expires: August 31, 2022

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Macon County Board that it hereby approves
the re-appointment of Larry D. Baker, D.V.M. as the Macon County Rabies Control Administrator
for a term of one year expiring August 31, 2022 at an annual salary of $26.00.
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall become effective upon the adoption
thereof.

PRESENTED, PASSED, APPROVED this 12" day of August, 2021

AYES NAYS MACON COUNTY BOARD
MACON COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ATTEST: BY:

Josh Tanner, Clerk for the Kevin Greenfield, Chairman

County of Macon, State of [llinois Macon County Board



Macon County Board Resolution
Appointments to the Macon County
Regional Planning Commission
- Jerry Culp
- Clay Gerhard
RESOLUTION NO. G-5297-08-21
WHEREAS,; it is the desire of the Macon County Board Chairman to appoint the following

individuals to the Macon County Regional Planning Commission for the remainder of 3 year

terms replacing Richie Wolf and Bill Clevenger and set to expire as indicated:

Jerry Culp Clay Gerhard

Decatur, IL 62521 Decatur, IL. 62526
Replacing Richie Wolf Replacing Bill Clevenger
Term Expires: 12-31-2022 Term Expires: 12-31-21

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Macon County Board that it hereby
approves the appointments of Jerry Culp & Clay Gerhard for the Macon County Regional
Planning Commission for the remainder of 3 year terms set to expire as indicated.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall become effective immediately upon
the adoption thereof.

PRESENTED, PASSED and APPROVED this 12" day of August, 2021.

AYES NAYS MACON COUNTY BOARD
MACON COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ATTEST: BY:

Josh Tanner, Clerk for the Kevin Greenfield, Chairman
County of Macon, State of Illinois Macon County Board



MACON COUNTY BOARD RESOLUTION
APPOINTMENTS TO THE
MACON COUNTY HEALTH BOARD

- Jeff Entler

- Cody Parks

RESOLUTION NO. G-5298-08-21
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Macon County Board Chairman to appoint Jeff Entler to

replace Laura Zimmerman and Cody Parks to replace Phil Tibbs to the Macon County Health
Board for the remainder of terms of 3 years set to expire as indicated,

Cody Parks Jeff Entler
Decatur, IL 62526 Decatur, Illinois, 62521
Term Expires: 5-31-24 Term Expires: 5-31-2023

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Macon County Board that the above said
individuals are appointed to the Macon County Health Board for a term of three years set to
expire as indicated.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shail become effective immediately upon
the adoption thereof.

PRESENTED, PASSED and APPROVED this 12th day of August, 2021.

AYES NAYS MACON COUNTY BOARD
MACON COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ATTEST: BY:

Josh Tanner, Clerk for the Kevin Greenfield, Chairman

County of Macon, State of [llinois Macon County Board



MACON COUNTY BOARD RESOLUTION
TO EXECUTE DEEDS TO CONVEY PROPERTY
ON WHICH TAXES WERE DELINQUENT

RESOLUTION NO. G-5299-08-21

WHEREAS, the County of Macon has undertaken a program to collect delinquent taxes and to
perfect titles to real property in cases where the taxes on same have not been paid pursuant to 35
ILCS 200/21-90; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to this program the County of Macon, as Trustee for the taxing districts
involved, has acquired an interest in the real estate described in the attachment to this resolution;
and

WHEREAS, it appears to the Macon County Board that it would be to the best interest of the
taxing districts of Macon County to dispose of this interest in said property.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Macon County Board that the Chairman of
the Macon County Board is hereby authorized to execute a deed of conveyance of the county’s
interest, authorization, or the cancellation of the appropriate certificate of purchase as the case may
be on the following real estate for the sums shown on the attachment and to be disbursed as shown
and according to law.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Macon County Board that this resolution shall become
effective upon the adoption thereof.

PRESENTED, PASSED, APPROVED the 12th day of August, 2021.

AYES NAYS MACON COUNTY BOARD
MACON COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ATTEST: BY:

Josh A. Tanner, Clerk for the Kevin R. Greenfield, Chairman

County of Macon, State of Illinois Macon County Board



SISgUISH SORILLLIOT

8E'965V$ Auno) o) [ejo).
00°0% S99 8JE]S JO DOG/I8pIodDYy
00°E6L$ §984 }18[D
8t cov'ys 0076519 82'699'Z$ 00'0% 00°0% 00°¢6L$ 9z'szZv'LS sjelo|
20°699°1 00'651 £Y'886 000 000 oo'oe Gr'969'Z LIO-LEL-E2-CL-F0 NOLONIHHOD 13d4va dns 950102102 Z00-l2-80
9EvEL'Z 000 Sr189'L 000 000 ooelt L8'ges'y 8L0-RLF¥L-CL-t0 ANHI NOHSV dns 0S800.10Z 10O-LZ-80
Jainsea)| Jwdiaap  jueby ajelg jo 988 I9suopony  WeID paalon #=01ey alleN junoday adA) unoaoy #s3d
PSIN /1ap10osy funog lEjoL
| 1o | abed 1202 ¥1snBny - 3s17 uonnjosay Ajyiuo KAunod uoden 1202/2e/L0



MACON COUNTY BOARD RESOLUTION
APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH
MACON COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH
BOARD FOR INMATE MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES AT THE MACON COUNTY JAIL
FOR THE TERM OF JULY 1, 2021 THROUGH
JUNE 30, 2022

RESOLUTION NO. G-5300-08-21

WHEREAS, Macon County is required by law to provide mental health medical services for
inmates and detainees in the custody of the Macon County Sheriff; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of Macon County to contract mental health services for
inmates in the Macon County Jail rather than to employ its own mental health physicians; and

WHEREAS, Macon County Mental Health Board and the Macon County Sheriff’s Office has
entered into agreements for Jail Counseling and Psychiatric Services previously and

WHEREAS, the parties have agreed to the terms and conditions as set forth in the attached
contract; and

WHEREAS, Macon County Mental Health Board shall pay up to the sum of $104,401 per year
for Jail Counselling and Psychiatric Services under the agreement; and

WHEREAS, the terms and conditions in the contract were discussed and approved by the
Justice Committee on July 22, 2021, and the Finance Committee on August 2, 2021.

Revenue 001-061-4548-000 $101,401
Expense 001-061-7340-000  $101,401

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Macon County Board that it hereby
approves the attached agreement for inmate mental health services at the Macon County Jail
beginning July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 and that the Board Chair is authorized to execute
said contract on behalf of the Board and to take any other actions necessary to finalize the
agreement.

PRESENTED, PASSED and APPROVED this 12th day of August, 2021.

AYES NAYS MACON COUNTY BOARD
MACON COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ATTEST: BY:

Josh Tanner, Clerk for the Kevin Greenfield, Chairman

County of Macon, State of Illinois Macon County Board



MACON COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD

CONTRACT

SECTION A: GENERAL PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS

Partigs

The Parties to this Contract are the Macon County Mental Health Board, a special unit of
Macon County government (herein referred to as the “Board”) end Macon County
Sheriff's Office (herein referred to as the “Entity”).

Legal Authorization

This Contract is entered into pursuant to the provisions of the Illinois Compiled Statutes,
Chapter 405, Act 20, Section 01 et. seq., the Community Mental Health Act.

Effective Date
Effective date of this date shall be 87/01/2021 te 06/30/2022.

Purpose

The Board desires to contract for deliverables from the Entity; and the Entity agrees to
the Board’s conditions to receive payments to provide those deliverables.

Amounts iverabl

The total payment under this Contract shall not exceed:

a. $104,401 for Jail Counseling and Pyschiatric Services deliverables in cost-
center 862701 (Jail Counseling/tx).

Amendments and Termination

a. This Contract may be amended only via mutual agreement of the Board and the
Entity.

b. Each party reserves the right to terminate this Contract at any time upon provision of
thirty (30) days written notice to the other party. The Board may terminate this
Contract immediately in the event the Entity substantially or materially breaches the
Contract. The Entity shall be paid for work satisfactorily completed prior to the date
of termination.

Non-Assignability

MCMHB Macon County Sheriffs Office Contract for 07/01/2021 thru 06/30/2022 Page 1



The Entity shall make no assignment of this Contract or any of the duties, deliverables, or
monies due hereunder without prior written approval of the Board.

o Liability

a. All liability, loss, or damages as a result of claims, demands, costs, or judgments
arising out of activities to be carried out pursuant to the legal obligations of the Entity
shall be the responsibility of the Entity, unless the liability, loss, or damages were
caused by or arose out of the actions or failure to act on the part of any Board
member, employee, or agent; provided, however, that nothing herein shall be
construed as a waiver of any immunity from suit which the Board, and its membets,
employees, or agents may have as provided by statue or court decisions.

b. The Entity agrees to indemnify and hold the Board harmless for any and all losses
and payments for which the Board shall become liable, including but not limited to
the Board’s reasonable attorney’s fees incurred in enforcing its rights and interests
under this Contract or in defending claims arising out of the provision or omission of
deliverables under this Contract.

c. The Entity agrees to reimburse the Board if payments were made that were rejected
for reimbursement of Board by any entity from which reimbursement was anticipated
and payment by Board funds would exceed the contract limits.

d. The Entity agrees to reimburse the Board if it is determined by any means that the
Entity inappropriately billed services, except in the event that the error in billing is a
result of the failure or malfunction of the Board’s designated software billing system,
and for any legitimate penalty that has been assessed. The Entity agrees to reimburse
the Board for expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, related to any payback
and/or the activities necessary to determine if a potential payback exists due to a
failure of Entity to comply with any Board requirement, guidelines for funding or this
contract.

o Conditions

a. The Entity agrees to comply with the terms of this Contract and with the Board’s
Requirements and Guidelines for Funding, which this reference is incorporated
herein.

b. The Entity agrees to provide all financial and service information needed to establish
Board payment rates.

¢. ‘The Entity agrees and stipulates that under this Contract it is providing deliverables as
an independent contractor for the Board and not as an agent of the Board and that all
of the acts or omissions of any Board member, officer, employee or agent of the
Entity commiited or omitted in the provision of deliverables under this Contract are
committed or omitted in such independent contractor status and not in any agency
status for the Board.

MCMHB Macon County Sheriff's Office Contract for 07/01/2021 thru 06/30/2022 Page 2



d. Unless noted otherwise in this Contract, the Entity may not bill another source of
funding for the same services, including the indirect service associated with direct
service for which the Board is providing payment. Additionally, the Entity may not
bill the Board for services that another source of funding exists and supports. This
includes such sources as the “All Kids” insurance program, which is operated by the
State of Illinois.

e. 'The Entity agrees to notify the Board prior to issuing public announcements or press
releases concerning work done pursvant to this Agreement, or funded in whole or in
part by this Agreement, and to cooperate with the Board in joint or coordinate
releases of information.

f. The Entity agrees to operate these services so that they are compliant with all State of
1llinois and Federal Laws, Rules and Regulations. The Entity agrees to maintain
current all certification(s) required by the State of Illinois, the Federal government
and the Board.

g. The Entity agrees to operate these services so that the Entity is compliant with all
HIPAA requirements.

h. Ifitis determined by any means that services provided by Entity are non-allowable,
Entity shall reimburse the Board the amount of any payback and penalty required by
the State or Federal government.

i. Additionally, if Entity has failed to meet any law, rule, guideline or requirement and
investigative or compliance related activities must be carried out by the Board, Entity
shall reimburse the Board for all expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees,
incurred by it in such activities.

SECTION B: ENTITY DUTIES
» Deliverables

a. The Entity shall provide the specified deliverables in accordance with the Board-
approved Service Delivery and Payment Plan (SDPP) form, which is attached to this
Contract as Appendix B and by this reference is incorporated herein.

b. The Entity shall provide evaluation information in accordance with the Board-
approved Service Demographic and Evaluation Requirements (SDER) form, which is
attached to this Contract as Appendix C and by this reference is incorporated herein.

¢. The Entity shall pravide services in accordance with the Service Summary, which is
attached to this Contract as Appendix D and by this reference is incorporated herein.

MCMHE Macon County Sheriff's Office Contract for 07/01/2021 thru 06/30/2022 Page 3



SECTION C: BOARD DUTIES

Funding

a. Commencement of the transfer of payments from the Board to the Entity shall begin

only after all of the conditions have been met:

1) Review, completion, and acceptance of Board-approved form: Service Delivery
and Payment Plan in the online system, which is located in Appendix B.

2) Review, completion, and acceptance of Board-approved form: Service
Demographic and Evaluation Requirements in the online system, which is noted
belowlocated in Appendix C.

3) Review, completion, and acceptance of Board-approved document: Service
Summary in the online system, which is located in Appendix D.

4) Formal execution of this Contract.

. The Board shall transfer payments to the Entity for the provision of Board-approved

deliverables in accordance with the terms of the Board-approved Service Delivery
and Payment Plan, Service Summary, and Requirements and Guidelines for Funding.

. The Board’s payments will be made within fifteen (15) working days of the Board’s

receipt of an accurate, appropriate electronic voucher from the Entity.

. Deliverables payable under this Contract, which the Entity does not voucher for

within 30 days of the end of this Contract period, shall not be paid by the Board, and
the Board shall not be liable under this Contract or any other Contracts to pay for
such deliverables,

Macon County Sheriff's Office Macon County Mental Healt ard
by : by .
Authorized Agent/Entity Board: Authorizgd’Agent

“bshs

Date

Date

MCMHB Macon County Sheriff's Office Contract for 07/01/2021 thru 06/30/2022

Page 4



Appendix A: Standerds of Conduct

d ider’ dards due
In demonstrating the Macon County Mental Health Board (Board) [A unit of Macon County
government] commitment to honest, ethical, and responsible conduct, the Board has voluntarily
implemented a compliance plan with the relevant Office of Inspector General (OIG) and Centers for
Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) statutory and regulatory transmittals, program memoranda
and other guidance and the Federal and State fraud and abuse statutes. This includes relevant state
and county laws, rules, and regulations that govern the operation of the Macon County Mental
Health Board. Within the compliance plan are the following standards of conduct for contracted
providers which will be a part of the contracting process for the Board.

Stan f Condu

The Standards of Conduct (Standards) apply to all contracted providers, and include a clearly
delineated commitment by the Board to insure compliance with all Local, Federal and State and
private insurer standards. The Standards promote integrity, support objectivity, and foster trust.
The standards are distributed to all contracted providers. Each contracted provider’s Executive
Director or Designee is asked to sign a statement certifying that they have received, read, and
understood the Standards. Each certification shall be kept by the Board in each contracted
providers file. The coniracted provider demonstrates this commitment upon legal execution of
their service contract. These standards are developed by the Board and apply to all contracted
providers.

1. The Board will monitor contracted providers to ensure provider personnel; delivering
services under such contract have the proper qualification, licensure or credentials,

2. Ensure that all employees and contracted providers protect the confidentiality of
protected health information (PHI) and individually identifiable health information, as
defined in the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and
its related Rules and Regulations and state laws;

3. Ensure that providers are required to maintain good standing with Federal and State
healthcare programs and that they have a continuing duty to report any investigations,
sanctions or exclusions immediately to the Board;

4. Ensure that coniracted providers have not billed another public or private funding source
for a service that has been billed to and/or reimbursed by the Board;

5. Ensure that contracted providers have not billed and/or received reimbursement from the
Board for services that should have been vouchered to another public or private funding
source;

6. Ensure that the Board monitors various aspects of the compliance plan by conducting
periodic audits to the effectiveness of operations and adherence to applicable laws in its
own operations and in contracted providers operations.

7. Ensure that whenever billing errors or overpayments are found, whether in the Board’s
operation or a coniracted provider’s operation, corrective action is taken immediately;

MCMHB Macon County Sheriff's Office Contract for 07/01/2021 thru 06/30/2022 Page5




8. Ensure that any contracted provider that violates their Board contract, their compliance
plan, these standards of conduct, Board funding regulations and guidelines and/or any
State, or Federal regulations are subject to a review of their contractual status and
appropriate Board action;

Appendix B: Service Delivery and Payment Plan (SDPP) Form,
See “Program Detail” in Main Menu/Agency/“Service” tab reflecting MHA Approved

a. Jail Counseling and Pyschiatric Services

July 2021 (07/01/21 to 07/31/21) $8,700.08
August 2021 (08/01/21 to 08/31/21)  $8,700.08
September 2021 (09/01/21 to 09/30/21)  $8,700.08
October 2021 (10/01/21 to 10/31/21) ~ $8,700.08
November 2021 (11/01/21 to 11/30/21)  $8,700.08
December 2021 (12/01/21 to 12/31/21)  $8,700.08
January 2022 (01/01/22 to 01/31/22) ~ $8,700.08
February 2022 (02/01/22 to 02/28/22)  $8,700.08
March 2022 (03/01/22 to 03/31/22) $8,700.09

April 2022 (04/01/22 to 04/30/22) $8,700.09
May 2022 (05/01/22 to 05/31/22) $8,700.09
June 2022 (06/01/22 to 06/30/22) $8,700.09
TOTAL $104,401.00

Appendix C: Service Demographic & Evaluation Requirements
The Entity shall provide the following evaluation information in accordance with the Board-
approved Service Demographic and Evaluation Requirements (SDER) form by the due daies

specified.
b. MHB Monitoring Reports 10/31/2021
¢. MHB Monitoring Reports 01/31/2022
d. Executed Contracting Documents 08/31/2021
e. MHB Monitoring Reports 07/31/2021
f. MHB Monitoring Reports 04/30/2022

MCMHB Macon County Sheriff's Office Contract for 07/01/2021 thru 06/30/2022 Page 6



Appendix D: Service Summary

Jail Counseling and Pyschiatric Services

Service Description: 1. Definition of a unit of service
Direct service is defined as time spent by Macon Co. Jail staff, and
contracted providers,providing eligible services to inmates at the Macon Co.
Jail, and calculated to the nearest quarter of an hour.

2. Service Requirements: When appropriate or necessary all inmates will, at a
minimum receive:
a) 24-hour crisis infervention
b) Counseling services
c) Psychiatric services
d) Coordinate/Establish behaviotal health aftercare services prior to release

3. Unit Rate
The Mental Health Board shall pay a unit rate of $39.79 per staff hour and
$285.00 per hour for psychiatry services.
Eligibility Parameters: Eligible Services:

1. Identification and referral of potential mental health court clients.

2. Work with the Macon County Mental Health Court staff when appraopriate on
behalf of a client/inmate.

3. 24-hour crisis intervention

4. Medication assessment

5. Suicidal risk assessment and intervention

6. Review and follow up after intake screening

7. Supportive counseling to facilitate adjustment to incarceration

8. Individual counseling

9. Group counseling

10. Support group facilitation

11. Coordination of other mental health or other relevant services

12. Communication with and maintenance of appropriate working relationship with
outside agencies.

13. Coordination and communication with jail medical staff

14. Activities that provide help for jail inmates for mental health problems,
mental illness, substance abuse problems or prevention of such problems
and/or illnesses

15. AA, NA, Anger Management, Growing Strong Sexuval Abuse/Assault
therapy

16. Cootdination with medicated assisted treatment program staff

17. Read and respond to inmate mental health requests

18. Assist in placement for those found unfit for trial - DHS and IDOC

19. Completion of IDOC mental health transfer sammaries

20. Identification and referral of those in need of Psychiatric services

21. Administrative costs related to the tele-psychiatry clinic

22. Coordinate/Establish behavioral health aftercare services prior to

MCMHB Macon County Sheriff's Office Contract for 07/01/2021 thru 06/30/2022 Page 7



release

Client
1. Inmate of the Macon County Jail
Documentation: Documentation
Macon County Jail will maintain a file/electronic record for each client served.
The file/electronic record will be assigned an identifying number or ID that is
consistent throughout the file and on any pertinent documents. The Macon County Jail
will ensure that all necessary and required documentation is present in
the files/electronic records and up-to-date.

The following specific items will be placed in each client’s file:
a. Inmate data
1. Demographic information
2. Diagnosis (if applicable)
b. Progress notes related to the client’s participation.
1. Reason for session
2. Intervention offered
3. Progress made
Vonchering Procedures; The Macon County Jail shall voucher monthly using the on-
line billing system and in accordance with the Service Delivery and Payment Plan. In
addition to the voucher The Macon County Jail will upload documentation that includes:
a. A report on staff hours worked during the billing period
b. Service level data (.csv or excel format)
a, Identifying number
b. Demographic information
¢. Reason for Incarceration
d. Service provided
¢. Service date
f. Diagnosis
g. Start/Stop times for service
h. Units (program hour to the nearest quarter hour)
i. Clinician/staff

No vouchers will be approved without the required documentation.

Vouchers should be submitted no later than 60 days after a period has ended.
Monitoring Procedures: The Macon County Mental Health Board expects that the
provider accepts and recognizes that it has the responsibility to comply and to provide the
deliverables according to the parameters of this contract. Board staff will monitor aspects
of this contract to ensure compliance but primary responsibility for contract compliance
lies with the provider. Board staff will monitor to ensure that the provider is documenting
the requisite information as well as providing eligible services to eligible service
recipients. Board staff witl review documentation, service recipients® records and may
observe the provision of services.

A monitoring visit shall include, but is not limited to, the following:
a. Interviewing key staff related to this service

MCMHB Macon County Sheriff's Office Contract for 07/01/2021 thru (6/30/2022 Poge 8




b. Reviewing randemly selected files for required documentation
d. Reviewing any other documents that assist with the monitoring process.
e. Reviewing information to determine the eligibility of clients and services

MCMHB Macon County Sheriff's Office Contract for 07/01/2021 thru 06/30/2022 Page 9



MACON COUNTY BOARD RESOLUTION
SETTING THE SALARIES FOR

OFFICES OF STATE’S ATTORNEY AND
PUBLIC DEFENDER EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2021

Resolution No. G-5301-08-21

WHEREAS, the salaries of the various state’s attorneys in Illinois are set by the General
Assembly, not by this Board; and

WHEREAS, in the State’s budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021, the General
Assembly increased the salary of the various state’s attorneys; and

WHEREAS, the Illinois Department of Revenue has notified the County of the amount of the
increase as well as the amount of reimbursement from the State pursuant to statute by letter of
June 30, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the County has been advised by the Illinois Department of Revenue that it must
receive a resolution from the County Board authorizing the new salaries before the State will
appropriately reimburse the County for the State’s portion of the salaries, creating an emergency
situation wherein the failure to amend midyear the FY21 budgets for the State’s Attorney’s and
Public Defender’s general fund accounts will result in the County losing valuable funding from
the State; and

WHEREAS, effective July 1, 2020 the base salary of the State’s Attorney will receive a 2.50%
cost of living adjustment increase per the notification from the Illinois Department of Revenue,
establishing a new salary amount of $183,434.18 annually; and

WHEREAS, per 55 ILCS 5/3-4007, the salary of a full-time public defender, which Macon
County has, must be at least 90% of the state’s attorney’s salary; thus, the public defender’s salary
must rise to $165,090.76 annually; and

WHEREAS, this matter has been discussed and recommended for approval by the Finance
Committee on August 2, 2021.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Macon County Board that it hereby adopts
the following salaries effective July 1, 2021:

State’s Attorney $183,434.18 per annum
Public Defender $165,090.76 per annum



G-xXX-X-Xx
Page 2

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the State’s Attorney’s and Public Defender’s FY21 general
fund budgets are amended as follows:

State’s Attorney

001-090-4533-000
001-090-5717-000

Public Defender

001-120-4533-000
001-120-5001-000

INCREASE $1,242.78
INCREASE $1,864.17

INCREASE $1,118.50
INCREASE $1,677.75

PRESENTED, PASSED, and APPROVED this 12th day of August, 2021.

AYES NAYS

ATTEST:

Josh Tanner, Clerk for the
County of Macon, State of Illinois

MACON COUNTY BOARD
MACON COUNTY, ILLINOIS

BY:

Kevin R. Greenfield, Chairman
Macon County Board



lllinois Department of Revenue
J Salary Reimbursement

MACON COUNTY Letter Date: 6/30/2021
141 S MAIN STREET Fiscal Year: 2022
DECATUR, IL 625231210 Effective as of: 7/1/2021

The state’s attorney and assistant state's attorney salary reimbursement amounts will be:

Base Salary 2.50 % COLA Salary
$178,960.18 $4,474.00 $183,434.18

Reimbursement breakdown

Total Reimbursement Monthly Reimbursement
1 State’s Attorney Salary $161,603.18 $13,466.93
less 1988 deduction $21,831 $0.00 $0.00

2 Assistant State's Attorney
Mental Health Institution:

3 Assistant State's Attorney $0.00 $0.00
Higher Education Facility:

Total $161,603.18 $13,466.93

Our records indicate that you have a Full-ime Public Defender, per lllinois Statute 55 ILCS 5/3-4007, the Public
Defender's salary must be at least 90% of the State's Attorney’s salary. Effective 7/1/2021 the new salary for
your Public Defender should be $165,090.76. We will need the attached PTAX-451, as well as County Board
action authorizing the new salary (minutes/resolution).

If you have any questions, please contact our Springfield office weekdays between 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m.

PROPERTY TAX DIVISION 3-450
ASSESSMENT EDUCATION

ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
PO BOX 19033

SPRINGFIELD IL 62794-9033

217 785-1356
217 782-9932 fax
rev.propertytaxed@illinois.gov

PTAX-1091 (R-07/14)



MACON COUNTY BOARD RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING PLAN FOR USE OF FUNDS RECEIVED
FROM THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT

RESOLUTION NO. G-5302-08-21

WHEREAS, the United States Congress took action to provide financial assistance to the
County of Macon and other governments across the United States to both mitigate the financial
impacts of COVID as well as stimulate economic recovery; and

WHEREAS, the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) was signed into law on March 11, 2021
providing $65.1 billion in funding for county governments and;

WHEREAS, Macon County will receive approximately $20.1 million in ARPA funds, with $10
million having been already received, and must spend these grant funds within roughly three and
one-half years, by December 31, 2024, and any unexpended funds must be returned to the U.S.
Treasury; and

WHEREAS, eligible uses of these funds include: Respond to the COVID-19 emergency and
address its negative economic impact, support workers that performed essential work during the
pandemic, counteract revenue reductions from the crisis, and invest in infrastructure; and

WHEREAS, restrictions on the uses of these funds include: Funds cannot be used to directly or
indirectly to offset tax reductions or delay a tax or tax increase; and Funds cannot be deposited
into any pension fund: and

WHEREAS, this resolution provides a framework to allow for use of the funds by Macon
County and is a broad plan to categorize anticipated spending; and

WHEREAS, this matter has been discussed by the Finance Committee on August 2, 2021 and
agreement reached to adopt this plan per the attached document shown;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Macon County Board that it hereby
approves the plan for use of funds as allowed in the American Rescue Plan Act; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall become effective upon the
adoption thereof.

PRESENTED, PASSED, APPROVED this 12th day of August, 2021

AYES NAYS MACON COUNTY BOARD
MACON COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ATTEST: ' BY:

Josh Tanner, Clerk for the Kevin R. Greenfield, Chairman

County of Macon, State of Illinois Macon County Board



Macon County American Rescue Plan

Overview

Macon County will receive an estimated $20 million from the American Rescue Plan Act, which was
signed into law by President Biden on March 11, 2021. $10 million has ailready been received and is on
deposit at a local bank. The funds must be spent by Dec. 31, 2024, and this document represents a
draft framework to utilize these funds over the next three years to strengthen our county and
community. Additional details for the administration and timing for each program or project will be
determined after this plan is approved by the Macon County Board at its August 12% board meeting.

Revenue Replacement - $4,000,000

Congressional language permits replacing estimated lost revenue during the pandemic. The county
proposes {o use funds for the following:

Loss of Revenue: Reimburse taxes, revenue from fees, and miscellaneous revenue that did not meet
projections to ensure the county remains on solid financial footing. (Est, $1,125,000/year). Some of
these funds may be used to provide additional laptop computer equipment to enable employees to work
from home, if necessary, and address other hardware/software needs of the County.

Essential County Employees - $1,000,000

The American Rescue Plan allows for “premium pay” for public employees who provided essential
.government services, so the county is proposing to use funds in the following ways:

Employee Pay:

* Provide extra pay to employees who fall under County Board/Officeholder oversight in fixed
doliar amounts based on an employee’s service during the pandemic and full-time status. This
is in recognition of county staff who have remained on the frontlines, continued important
public services, and ensured residents received the help they needed af a time when it was
critical. ($1,000,000)

Infrastructure and Emergency Management - $7,000,000

The Congressional language permits using the funds for water, sewer and broadband purposes, so the
county proposes the following:

Broadband Access: A program to connect homes to broadband, focusing on communities, which do not currently
have broadband access in order to increase access and affordability to reliable high-speed internet for students and

families.



Emergency Operations: Replenish the County’s PPE stock and replace or upgrade necessary EMA vehicles and
equipment to ensure adequate readiness for any future pandemic issues.

Stormwater Infrastructure: Make necessary investments to stormwater infrastructure to-improve runoff
and flood control from severe weather events.

County Administrator - $500,000

Funds may be used to cover the costs related to administrative work necessary due to the COVID-19
public health emergency and its negative economic impact. This includes but is not limited to
disbursing payments and managing grant programs established using Fiscal Recovery Funds.

Rehiring Local Government Staff to Pre-pandemic levels - §1,000,000

Rehiring of public sector workers who may have been laid off or workers not replaced when
terminations occurred due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Support Public Health Response - $1,000,000

Funds may be used to meet and address emergent health needs — this may include new adaptive
drinking fountains or other adaptive measures to provide for health and safety in our buildings or
provide PPE and other sanitization equipment to county agencies.

Business and Employment Assistance - $5,500,000

The legislation allows for assistance to businesses and nonprofits. Macon County’s leisure and
hospitality sectors were particularly hard hit during the pandemic and the county proposes using funds
for the following:

Business Assistance: Business grants, scaled in size based on a business’ number of employees,
focused on the retail, service, leisure, tourism, hospitality sectors and childcare facilities. ($2,000,000)

Nonprofit Assistance: Grants to nonprofits that have been negatively impacted or were not able to
continue operations at some point during the pandemic. This may include grants for mental health
assistance, crisis intervention or other social service agencies filling-a need in our community.
($2,000,000)

Total Amount of Funding Outlined in the County’s Plan: $20,000,000



MACON COUNTY BOARD RESOLUTION
TO ESTABLISH THE POSITION OF
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

G-5303-08-21

WHEREAS, the Macon County Board has determined that there is a need for professional
administration of Macon County’s operations to more ably accomplish the objectives of the board;
and

WHEREAS, circumstances have given rise to an emergency situation in that this expense is not
included in the FY 2021 budget and this opportunity will be lost without amending this budget.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Macon County Board that the position of
County Administrator shall be created using the attached job description;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following budget line items be created or amended to
provide for the functions of the County Administrator’s Office:

001-021-5005-000  County Administrator $50,000
001-021-6010-000  Group Health Insurance $10,000
001-021-7195-000  Training $2,000
001-021-7210-000  Dues $2,000
001-021-8020-000  Office Supplies $2,000
001-021-9040-000  Equipment $2,000

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the board authorizes Workforce Investment Solutions to
conduct a search for candidates and to bring the best three (3) candidates before the committee
consisting of Mr. Tanner, Ms. Reed, & Ms. Wilkerson for consideration.

PRESENTED, PASSED, and APPROVED this 12% day of August, 2021.

AYES NAYS MACON COUNTY BOARD
MACON COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ATTEST: BY:

Josh Tanner, Clerk for the Kevin R. Greenfield, Chairman

County of Macon, State of Illinois Macon County Board



Macon County Administrator

County Administrator Selection Criteria

Macon County is seeking a motivated professional for the position of County Administrator who
is passionate about local government and administration. Responsibilities include management of
County Board personnel, assisting with the annual budget preparation, long range planning, and
inter-governmental relations. The county Administrator will perform their functions in accordance
with the policies and directives formulated by the Macon County Board.

Essential Functions

Collaborate with other departments, elected offices, and jurisdictions,

Oversees and implements the organizational vision of the County Board.

Ensures that laws, ordinances, resolutions and policies of the County Board are enforced.
Responsible for coordinating short and long range planning for the county.

Participate with legal counsel in all collectively bargained negotiations.

Monitors departmental budget performance against budget on a monthly basis.

Serves as the Public Information Officer for the County Board, corresponding with the
public, individuals, state and federal agencies as well as elected officials.

Researches and provides information to the County Board members as requested.
Develops policies and procedures for County Board consideration and adoption.
Reviews, analyzes and prepares proposals for liability, property and casualty, workers
compensation, health, and other necessary insurance and personnel bond Pprograms.

* Manages the recruitment, selection, termination, promotion, demotion, transfer and
suspension of County Administrator Office staff.

Coaches, disciplines and evaluates the work of County Administrator Office staff.
Makes recommendations for hiring of appointed officials. _

Works with outside funding agencies, and actively researches grant opportunities.
Serves as the County Board’s legislative laison and monitors legislative sessions for
potential impacts on county government.

Maintains working relationship with state representatives and senators and their staff
members to ensure county opinions are heard,

Assists in resolving conflicts with citizens, staff and other individuals and groups.
‘Serves as the county representative on various boards, as requested by the Chairman,
Serves as the FOIA Officer for the County Board.

Coordinates County Board committee meetings at the direction of the committee chairs.
Performs other duties as directed by the Board.-

@ @ 8 9 * & * @ & & o & @



Education

» Candidates should have a Bachelor's degree or higher in public administration, business

administration, or a closely related field.
* MBA or MPA preferred, with at least seven years of progressively responsible experience
in city/county administration or equivalent experience involving private/public institutions.

Knowledge

Comprehensive knowledge of public administration’ principles and practices
Comprehensive knowledge of local government finance practices

Comprehensive knowledge of collectively bargained compensation and benefits
Comprehensive knowledge of county government laws, ordinances and regulations

*® & e »

Personal Skills

A high degree of integrity and responsiveness are required

Ability to communicate effectively both orally and in writing

Ability to write clear and concise reports, memoranda, directives and letters

Ability to analyze complex problems and develop comprehensive plans from general
instructions Ability to meet the public and to discuss problems and complaints

Ability to plan and direct the work of employees

Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with associates, elected
officials, local, state and federal governmental agency representatives and the general-
public '

Submit Resume to:
Workforce Investment Solutions
ATTN: Rocki Wilkerson

757 W Pershing Road

Decatur, IL 62526

rwilkerson@mdwis.org



MACON COUNTY BOARD RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING PLAN FOR PREMIUM PAY FOR
ESSENTIAL WORKERS UNDER THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT

RESOLUTION NO. G-5304-08-21

WHEREAS, the United States Congress took action to provide financial assistance to the
County of Macon and other governments across the United States to both mitigate the financial
impacts of COVID as well as stimulate economic recovery; and

WHEREAS, the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) was signed into law on March 11, 2021
providing $65.1 billion in funding for county governments and;

WHEREAS, Macon County has received $10 million of the approximately $20.1
million in ARPA funds which have been allocated to Macon County, and must spend
these grant funds within roughly three and one-half years, by December 31, 2024, and
any unexpended funds must be returned to the U.S. Treasury; and

WHEREAS, recovery funds may be used by recipients, including counties, to
provide premium pay to eligible county workers performing essential county work
during the COVID-19 public health emergency; and

WHEREAS, this premium pay my be provided retrospectively for work performed at any time
since the start of the COVID-19 public health emergency; and

WHEREAS, Macon County wishes to recognize employees for work previously performed by
providing full time employees as of August 12, 2021, who fall under County Board/Officeholder
oversight or Macon County Health Board, $125 per month worked for the periods April, 2020 to
March, 2021 (maximum $1500) and part-time employees as of August 12, 2021 $62.50 per
month worked (maximum $750) for the same period; and

WHEREAS, the total expenditure for this premium pay is estimated not to exceed $800,000;
and

WHEREAS, this matter was discussed by the Finance Committee on August 30,
2021 and recommended for approval by the Macon County Board;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Macon County Board that it hereby
approves the plan for use of funds for premium pay as allowed in the American
Rescue Plan Act; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall become effective upon
the adoption thereof.



PRESENTED, PASSED, APPROVED this 12 day of August, 2021

AYES - NAYS o MACON COUNTY BOARD
MACON COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ATTEST; BY:

Josh Tanner, Clerk for the Kevin R. Greenfield, Chairman

County of Macon, State of Illinois Macon County Board



